ALASKA STATE LEG SLATURE
HOUSE LABOR AND COVMERCE STANDI NG COW TTEE
April 18, 2001
3:15 p.m

MVEMBERS PRESENT

Representative Lisa Miurkowski, Chair
Representative Andrew Hal cro, Vice Chair
Representati ve Kevin Meyer

Representati ve Pete Kott

Represent ati ve Nor man Rokeberg
Representative Harry Crawford
Representati ve Joe Hayes

VEVMBERS ABSENT
Al l nmenbers present
COW TTEE CALENDAR

HOUSE BI LL NO. 225
"An Act relating to nunicipal taxation of alcoholic beverages
and increasing the al coholic beverage tax rates.”

- MOVED CSHB 225(L&C) OQUT OF COW TTEE

HOUSE BI LL NO. 228

"An Act relating to the offense of selling or giving tobacco to
a mnor, to the accounting of fees from business |icense
endorsenents for tobacco products, to the disclosure of certain
confidential <cigarette and tobacco product information, to
notification regarding a cigarette manufacturer's nonconpliance
wth the tobacco product Mster Settlenment Agreenent, to
busi ness |license endorsenents for sale of tobacco products, to
citations and penalties for illegal sales of tobacco products;
and providing for an effective date.”

- MOVED CSHB 228(L&C) OQUT OF COW TTEE

HOUSE BI LL NO. 157

"An Act relating to trust conpanies and providers of fiduciary
services; anending Rules 6 and 12, Alaska Rules of Guvil
Procedure, Rule 40, Alaska Rules of Crimnal Procedure, and
Rul es 204, 403, 502, 602, and 611, Alaska Rules of Appellate
Procedure; and providing for an effective date.™

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE -1- April 18, 2001



- BILL HEARI NG POSTPONED TO 4/19/01
PREVI QUS ACTI ON
BILL: HB 225

SHORT TI TLE: ALCOHOLI C BEVERAGE TAX
SPONSOR( S):  REPRESENTATI VE( S) MURKOWSKI

Jrn-Date Jrn- Page Action
03/ 30/ 01 0789 (H READ THE FI RST TI ME -
REFERRALS
03/ 30/ 01 0789 (H L&C, FIN
04/ 03/ 01 0830 (H COSPONSOR('S) :  HUDSON
04/ 09/ 01 (H L&C AT 3:15 PM CAPI TOL 17
04/ 09/ 01 (H Heard & Held
M NUTE( L&C)
04/ 10/ 01 (H L&C AT 3: 00 PM CAPI TOL 120
04/ 10/ 01 (H Heard & Held
M NUTE( L&C)
04/ 11/01 (H L&C AT 3:15 PM CAPI TOL 17
04/ 11/01 (H Heard & Held
04/ 11/01 (H M NUTE( L&C)
04/ 18/ 01 (H L&C AT 3:15 PM CAPI TOL 17
BILL: HB 228

SHORT TI TLE: SALE OF TOBACCO PRODUCTS
SPONSOR(S): REPRESENTATI VE( S) HARRI S

Jrn-Date Jrn- Page Action

04/ 02/ 01 0809 (H READ THE FI RST TI ME -
REFERRALS

04/ 02/ 01 0809 (H L&C, JUD, FIN

04/ 03/ 01 0831 (H COSPONSOR('S) :  HUDSON,
MJURKOWSKI

04/ 17/ 01 1021 (H COSPONSOR('S) : KERTTULA

04/ 18/ 01 1053 (H COSPONSOR('S): CRAWORD

04/ 18/ 01 (H L&C AT 3:15 PM CAPI TOL 17

W TNESS REG STER

JOHN MANLY, Staff

to Representative John Harris

Al aska State Legislature

Capi tol Building, Room 513

Juneau, Al aska 99801

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified on behalf of the sponsor of HB
228.

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE - 2- April 18, 2001



ELMER LI NDSTROM Speci al Assi st ant

O fice of the Conm ssi oner

Departnent of Health & Social Services
PO Box 110601

Juneau, Al aska 99811

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified on HB 228.

EDW N SASSER, Project Coordi nator

D vision of Public Health

Department of Health & Social Services

PO Box 110630

Juneau, Al aska 99811

POSI TI ON STATEMENT:  Answered questions on HB 228.

M CHAEL LI VI NGSTON, Detective

Anchor age Pol i ce Depart nent

4501 Sout h Bragaw

Anchor age, Al aska 99507

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified on HB 228.

DAN BRANCH, Assistant Attorney GCeneral

Commer ci al Section

Cvil Division (Juneau)

Depart ment of Law

PO Box 110300

Juneau, Al aska 99811

POSI TI ON STATEMENT:  Answered questions on HB 228.

JOHANNA BALES, Revenue Auditor

Tax Division

Departnent of Revenue

550 west 7th Street

Anchor age, Al aska 99501

POSI TI ON STATEMENT:  Answered questions on HB 228.

JENNI FER STRI CKLER, Admi nistrative Oficer

Di vision of Cccupational Licensing

Department of Comrunity & Econom c Devel opnent

PO Box 110806

Juneau, Al aska 99811

POSI TI ON STATEMENT:  Answered questions on HB 228.

ACTI ON NARRATI VE

TAPE 01-59, SIDE A
Number 0001

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE - 3- April 18, 2001



CHAIR LISA MJRKOMSKI called the House Labor and Conmerce
Standing Conmittee neeting to order at 3:15 p.m Menber s
present at the call to order were Representatives Mirkowski,
Hal cro, Crawford, and Hayes. Representatives Meyer, Kott, and
Rokeberg joined the neeting as it was in progress.

HB 225- ALCOHOLI C BEVERAGE TAX

CHAI R MURKOWSKI announced that the first order of business would
be HOUSE BILL NO. 225, "An Act relating to nunicipal taxation of
al coholic beverages and increasing the alcoholic beverage tax
rates.”

CHAI R MURKOWSKI rem nded nenbers that during the last hearing

[April 11] there was a notion to reconsider after a successfu
vote to nove the bill out of commttee. That reconsideration
notion, she said, was out of order. The only thing [the

commttee] had failed to do was [sign the committee report].
Nunmber 0166

CHAI R MJURKOWBKI announced that CSHB 225(L&C) noved from the
House Labor and Conmerce Standing Committee.

HB 228- SALE OF TOBACCO PRODUCTS

CHAI R MJURKOABKI announced that the final order of business would
be HOUSE BILL NO 228, "An Act relating to the offense of
selling or giving tobacco to a mnor, to the accounting of fees
from business |icense endorsenents for tobacco products, to the
di scl osure of certain confidential cigarette and tobacco product
i nformation, to notification regar di ng a cigarette
manuf acturer's nonconpliance with the tobacco product Master
Settl enment Agreenent, to business |icense endorsenents for sale
of tobacco products, to citations and penalties for illegal
sal es of tobacco products; and providing for an effective date."

Nunmber 0286

JOHN MANLY, Staff to Representative John Harris, Al aska State
Legi slature, came forth on behalf of the sponsor of HB 228. He
stated that this canme to Representative Harris's attention as he
was doing the Departnment of Health & Social Services budget.

[ The state], he said, is being thwacked by the federa
governnent for $1.5 mllion in the drug-and-al cohol block grants
because the tobacco-sales-to-mnors [rate] is too high. The

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE -4- April 18, 2001



federal governnment sets a target of about 20 percent of sales to
m nors; however, Alaska is running about 61 percent in the Bush,
and about one third in the urban areas.

MR. MANLY explained that, essentially, HB 228 increases the
penalties that would be paid by the owner of the business who
hol ds the endorsenent on the business license to sell tobacco
products. Representative Harris has asked for relatively hefty
fines in that regard; therefore, they are set between $1, 000 and
$5,000. In addition, the departnment currently has the option to
suspend the endorsenment so the business can't sell tobacco
products for a certain amount of tinme - up to 45 days. Those
suspensions, [with this bill] would be set at 20 days for the
first offense, 45 days for the second, and 90 days for the
t hi rd.

MR. MANLY inforned the committee that the bill makes a nunber of

ot her changes. The nost significant one concerns the cost of
the tobacco endorsenent for a business |icense. Currently, it
is $25 for a two-year endorsenment, whether it is for a nmom and-
pop shop or a big chain store. This bill proposes to change
that to $100 for a two-year endorsenent per outlet. He stated
that this mkes it weasier to enforce a suspension of an
endorsenent, and to keep track of violations. He added that
there are other mnor parts of the bill, such as in Sections 3
and 4, that have to do with the Departnent of Revenue's tracking
of the conpliance with the tobacco settlenment that all the

states have entered into.
Number 0657

CHAI R MJRKOABKI asked whether [the legislature] is currently
bei ng penalized for not being in conpliance.

MR. MANLY responded that the budget for this comng fiscal year
has $1.5 mllion deducted fromthe drug and al cohol abuse grant.
He said this is based on conpliance checks that were done in
1999. He remarked that presuming the legislature will approve
the attached fiscal notes and put $481,000 into tobacco
enforcenment, the federal governnent will relieve the |egislature
of the penalty for this year

CHAI R MURKOWASKI asked whether the $481,000 is over and above

what [the legislature] has currently put in the operating budget
for tobacco prevention or cessation prograns.

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE - 5- April 18, 2001



MR.  MANLY answered that it is in addition to what the
| egi sl ature had spent in the |ast fiscal year.

Number 0749

REPRESENTATI VE HALCRO said he is only concerned that the bil
will not solve the problem unless there is a substantial
i nvestnment in enforcenent. He asked M. Manly whether he has

had di scussions with any of the departnents about how to apply
the noney to enforcenent, and about increasing ABC [Al cohol
Beverage Control] enforcenent.

MR. MANLY responded that to his know edge that has not been
di scussed. He stated that the bulk of this noney would be used
to contract with |local |aw enforcenent to increase the checks.

Nunmber 0861

ELMER LI NDSTROM Special Assistant, Ofice of the Comm ssioner,
Departnent of Health & Social Services [DHSS], cane forth and
stated that this legislation is an inportant issue facing the
departnment. He referred to a PowerPoint presentation [hard copy
provided in the commttee packets] and stated that this provides
a good deal of introductory information on the inpact of tobacco
on [Al aska and Al askans]. The latter sections, he said, go into
speci fic discussion of the enforcenent issues.

CHAI R MURKOWSKI referred on page 7 [of the presentation] to the
statistic, "Between 1988 and 1996, the percentage of teenagers
taking up the habit junped 73 percent.” She asked M. Lindstrom
whether the [departnment's] statistical evaluation only goes
t hrough 1996, and whether there have been efforts that have
decreased the incidence of teenage snoking.

MR. LI NDSTROM responded that these nunbers are from the Center
for Disease Control [and Prevention] (CDC). He said he is
guessing that they probably cane from the youth risk-behavior
surveys that are done by nobst states.

Nunber 0994
EDW N SASSER, Project Coordinator, Division of Public Health,
Departnent of Health & Social Services [DHSS], cane forth and

stated that the bulk of the nunbers in the [PowerPoint
presentation] are CDC nunbers, with a couple of exceptions.

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE - 6- April 18, 2001



CHAIR MJRKOWNSKI  asked whether it's not that there isn't
information after 1996, but that was just the period of tinme the
survey was taking things into account.

MR. SASSER responded that it was the period of tinme that there
were solid nunbers the departnent felt were recordable.

MR. LI NDSTROM referred to a description of what a conprehensive
tobacco control program ought to look like [the bottom of page
10, continuing to page 12]. He noted that it includes a nunber
of conponents such as comunity tobacco-prevention prograns,
chroni c-di sease prograns, school prevention  prograns, an
enforcenment conponent, counter-marketing, statew de prograns,
snoki ng cessation progranms, surveillance and eval uati on systens,
and an adm ni strative system to make it al | wor K.
Unfortunately, he said, the departnent does not have sufficient
resources in its conprehensive tobacco control programto do the
job that needs to be done on each one of these elenents. He
explained that the enforcenent conponent is part of the
conprehensive program It is unique, he said, because it is the
one elenment by its very nature that relies on the state to
perform The advice from everyone working in tobacco contro
in the absence of fully funding the tobacco control program has
been that enforcement is not regarding as the highest priority.
That is backed up by the CDC.

MR. LINDSTROM referred to page 13 [of the presentation] and
expl ai ned t hat t he f eder al Synar [ anendnent requires]
"enforcenent of state-level mnors' access |laws" to decrease
sales to persons under the age of 18 to less than 20 percent.
This is done by annual statewide inspection surveys that
accurately neasure the effectiveness of enforcenent efforts.
The departnent then reports annually to the U S. Secretary of
Heal th and Human Services. The penalty for nonconpliance is the
reduction of the substance abuse block grant - treatnent dollars
for people who are al cohol abusers or who abuse other controlled
subst ances.

Number 1190

MR. LI NDSTROM renar ked that he has been frustrated over the |ast
year. On the one hand, the federal governnent, which controls
tobacco, says, "You need a conprehensive program but if vyou
don’t have enough noney, enforcenent isn't really the top

priority." On the other hand, another federal agency "holds a
gun" and says, "Unless you nake enforcenment a priority, we are
going to hold hostage your alcohol treatnent dollars.” He

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE -7- April 18, 2001



expressed that the people who are responsible for admnistering
the substance abuse prograns don't wake up in the norning
feeling that tobacco control is their first priority. Likew se,
people in public health really aren't tied to the desires and
needs of the substance abuse comunity and the federal |aw that
governs them

CHAI R MJURKOABKI surmi sed that [the legislature] is in conpliance
in that [the departnent] conducts the annual survey, but is not
in conpliance wth getting the nunbers to the level the U S
Secretary of Health and Human Servi ces wants.

MR. LI NDSTROM responded in the affirmative, but noted that over
the last four or five years the nethodology that [the
departnent] has wused has changed from year to Vyear. For
exanple, one year [the departnent] had access to sone federal
Food and Drug Adm nistration dollars, which thought it was in
the business of regulating tobacco until the U S. Suprene Court
ruled that it really didn't have jurisdiction

Nunber 1317

MR. LI NDSTROM referred to slide 35, which gives a picture of
what the enforcenment program | ooks like. [If a clerk in a retai
outlet sells tobacco to a mnor and is found guilty of that
offense, the finding of guilt is supposed to go from the court
systemto the Division of Cccupational Licensing. The end point
is the suspension of that retailer's ability to sell tobacco to
anyone for up to 45 days for a first offense and up to 90 days
for a second offense. The problem he said, is that there are
many agencies and people that need to be involved in different
parts of the process to get from point A to point B. He
explained that the Division of Al coholism and Drug Abuse is
responsible for generating the sanple of outlets to be
i nspect ed. The Division of Public Health has been responsible
for contracting with local |aw enforcenent. If a tobacco sale
is made, a citation will be issued, and it wll then go into the
court system The court system has to be counted on to send the
material on to the Division of GCccupational Licensing, and the
division has to be counted on to pursue the suspension.

Nunmber 1434
MR. LI NDSTROM remarked that with the exception of the tobacco
prevention and control people within the Dvision of Public

Heal th, none of these other agencies "wake up every norning
going, 'I know that one of mny top priorities, one of my mssions

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE - 8- April 18, 2001



in life, is to enforce the state tobacco control ordinance.""
He added that it doesn't surprise himthat the "tobacco sales to
m nors” |aw does not rise to the top as sonething that |ocal |aw
enforcement would do. Li kew se, he said, the D vision of
Qccupational Licensing is primarily a revenue-generator and was
never conceived as a regulatory nmechani sm

CHAI R MJURKOWBKI asked how the Division of Occupational Licensing
becane involved in the first place.

MR. LI NDSTROM responded that he has not researched how that cane
about . However, the underlying |aw has been on the books for
many years, and has only sporadically been used. The first
significant efforts, he said, were during the negotiations for
the tobacco settlenent when the Departnent of Law nade a

conscious decision to pursue a nunber of these citations. The
[departnent's] task today, he said, is to put in place a real
systemthat will keep working over time wthout special care and

attention on the part of a particular conm ssioner.

MR. LI NDSTROM remarked that there was a reference to the fiscal
penalties and said [the state] was found in nonconpliance for
federal fiscal year 2000; the basis of that nonconpliance is on

[ page] 15. O the outlets surveyed last fall in the nore renote
areas - communities with fewer than 9 outlets - 61 percent of
the tinme the youths were successful in buying tobacco; in
comunities with 9 to 49 outlets, it was 40 percent of the tineg;
and in the major cities - Anchorage, Juneau, Fairbanks, and
Ketchikan - it was 26 percent of the tine. The bottom line is

that [m nors] are buying tobacco at an unacceptably high rate.

MR. LI NDSTROM reported that [Al aska] was found in nonconpliance

for federal fiscal year 1999 and appeal ed. Bef ore the appeal
could run its course, Congress, several nonths ago, passed an
alternative penalty. The federal governnent said, "W wll not
take $1.5 mllion of your substance abuse treatnent noney if,
effective July of 2001, you denponstrate that you can put new
resour ces into t he t obacco enf or cenent pr ogram [ of ]
approxi mately $481, 000." He noted that those are the funds

reflected in the fiscal note.
Number 1664

CHAIR MJRKOWBKI asked what could be done now in terns of
training clerks about the sale of tobacco products.

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE - 9- April 18, 2001



MR. LI NDSTROM responded that historically very little has been

done by the state. That is a significant conmponent of the
fiscal note, and sone of the additional resources will be used
for vendor education and training. He renmarked that he knows

there is a training programthat Philip Mrris or someone in the
i ndustry has nmade available to retailers.

MR. SASSER remarked that the W Card programis a consortium of
t obacco conpany noney. As part of a settlenent in Juneau, a
curriculum was prepared whereby the Division of Public Health
wor ked out, as part of the settlenent for vendors who had sold
tobacco products to youths, having their penalty reduced by
goi ng through a vendor education program He stated that it is
a pretty good curriculum and it is adaptable to a statew de
application as part of tobacco enforcenent now. He added that
he t hi nks busi nesses and cl erks deserve knowi ng upfront how much
damage they can do to their boss, to their business, and to
t henmsel ves by inadvertently or volitionally selling tobacco to
yout h.

CHAI R MURKOWBKI asked whether the state sends out a fact sheet
when a person renews his or her endorsenent.

MR. SASSER responded that every vendor who had an endorsenent
prior to the year 2000 in the state has received at |east one
packet. The division has since passed out letters to those who
passed and failed the | ast Synar checks.

Nunber 1825

REPRESENTATI VE MEYER stated that this is a subject of interest
to him He said it seens to him that the clerks should know
that what they are selling is different from a candy bar. He
remarked that he is wondering if 20 days for the first offense
is enough, because it is so hard to catch businesses that are

selling to mnors. He added that it would seem to him that
there should be periodic "stings." In terms of a vending
machi ne, he said he thinks they should be in the vision of the
clerk or the owner. He asked whether [Al aska] still has federa

noney coming to the local municipalities for the stings, and
whet her the division would support a stiffer penalty for first
of f enses.

MR. LI NDSTROM responded that to his know edge no funding goes
directly to nunicipalities from the federal governnent for this
effort. In the past, he said, there have been federal dollars
com ng through [DHSS]. He remarked that under the current | aw,

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE -10- April 18, 2001



the first penalty could be up to 45 days and the second offense
could be up to 90 days. He said he thinks fromthe departnent's
perspective, the certainty of the penalty is at least as
inportant as the duration. He added that he doesn't believe
[the departnment] would object if it were a nandatory 45 days on
the first offense, but it should be fixed. In addition, he
said, the bill also includes sonmething that isn't in current
| aw, which is the fine to the retailer - $1,000 - for the first
of f ense.

CHAI R MJRKOWBKI asked whet her each vendi ng nmachi ne would have to
have a separate endorsenent.

Number 2135

MR. LI NDSTROM responded that the entity that actually owns the
vendi ng nachines nust have an endorsenent, and there is an
endorsenent required for the people who are responsible to see
t hat nobody accesses that particular nmachine. For exanple, if a
person owmns a bowing alley and had a cigarette machine on the
prem ses, the bowing alley nust have an endorsenent and would
be held responsible if kids are accessing that machine. At the
sane tine, the person who owns the machine also has to have an
endor senent .

MR. SASSER added that in the bill, it is very difficult to have
a penalty assessed for a vending machine conpany, because
[ someone from the conpany] would have to have placed the machine
either too close to a door or in a place where 17-year-olds or
18-year-ol ds can access it. Wiile there is a provision in the
bill for a vending nmachine conpany to lose its endorsenent, it
woul d be very rare that would be the case. The responsibility
for observing the sales nmade on a daily basis from that machi ne
falls to the place that contracted wth the vendor, he
i ndi cat ed.

CHAI R MURKOWBKI asked, if the bowing alley [clerk] consistently
| ooks the other way when kids purchase cigarettes from the
machi ne, whether this bill allows for the vending machine to be
pulled fromthe prem se.

MR. SASSER responded that if the vending machine conpany has
negligently placed the machine, then its endorsenent is at risk.
If the bowing alley negligently supervised the nachine, then it
|l oses its endorsenent; during the tinme the endorsenent 1is
suspended, the machine is either |ocked up or renoved.

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE -11- April 18, 2001



CHAI R MURKOWSKI asked whether there are two endorsenments in one
establ i shnment : the endorsenent on the vending nachine that's
held by the vending machine owner, and the endorsenent to the
prem ses to have the vendi ng nmachi ne.

MR. SASSER answered that the vending machine conpany has only
one endorsenent statewide, no matter how many machines [the
conpany] pl aces.

Nunber 2246

REPRESENTATI VE HAYES asked how many incidents would have to
happen for a business [with a vending machine] to be
[ consi dered] negligent.

MR. SASSER answered that the youth would have to be on the
prem ses where he or she is not supposed to be, in order to buy
from the vendi ng machi ne. For exanple, the only tinme a bowing
all ey could have a vending machine would be if there were a bar.
I nci dental purchases, he said, are rare in those circunstances.

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG asked what the financial inpact would be
if the bill failed to pass.

MR. LI NDSTROM responded that the inpact on the tobacco program

is nil; the inpact on the substance abuse alcohol treatnent
programis $1.5 nmillion
Nunmber 2333

M CHAEL LI VINGSTON, Detective, Anchorage Police Departnent,
testified via tel econference. He shared with the commttee how
he becane involved in this issue. He stated:

It started back in the 1980s when | would drive by
high schools [and] there would be a |arge nunber of
ki ds outside snoking. I"d ask them where they get
their cigarettes from and they would tell nme, "About
any store in Anchorage.”

| wanted to begin doing tobacco stings, but ny
departnment basically said, "No, the timng s not
right." Back in 1997 the State of Alaska was
considering suing the tobacco industry and the tobacco
industry filed a preenptive |awsuit saying, "You can't
sue us." It was about that tine, the attorney
general's office got a hold of the chief of police,

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE -12- April 18, 2001



and the chief of police got a hold of ne and asked ne
to start doing stings.

Since 1997, ... | have witten probably nore tickets
for sale of tobacco to mnors than any other police
officer in the state of Al aska. |"ve testified in
nore crimnal cases with defense attorneys, probably
nore than any other police officer in Al aska. ' ve
talked with many store clerks, ['ve talked wth many
tobacco license owners. So when | tal k about tobacco,
| feel that my information is based upon a great dea

of experience. ... Qite frankly, by now I was hoping
that the problem would be taken care of, but obviously
it is not.

DETECTI VE LI VI NGSTON conti nued:

| am in support of alnpst all of the provisions,
except for any attenpts to anmend Title 11. Title 11
is not [broken]; Title 11 works very well right now
The changes on the surface that are being proposed
appear to be good changes. | am in support of
progressive discipline; however, | <can't help but
wonder whet her or not the proposed changes are |egal

Nunber one, [AS] 11.76.100 is a violation. The
maxi mum fine under Title 11 for any violation is $300.
So, if you attenpt to anmend the law and increase the
fine to anything over $300, | can't help but wonder
whether or not that |aw wll be challenged and
determ ned to be unconstitutional and inproper.

Nunber two, is it necessary? O all the citations
that 1've issued or supervised the issuance [of] by
other police officers, there's been only one case out
of at least 100 citations where there were repeat
of f enders. Typically, it's not the tobacco |icense
owner who actually does the sale. Typically, it's the
clerk and typically, fromone time to the next, it's a
different clerk. In sunmary, | would request that you
| eave Title 11 al one.

| would like to comment just briefly on the 20-day

suspensi on. On the surface, initially, | was in
opposition of that, because | do believe in harsh
puni shnent for repeat offenders. However, over the

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE -13- April 18, 2001



years |'ve spoken wth many owners of tobacco
licenses, and | think one thing we need to do is nake
certain that we're being fair to them

TAPE 01-59, SIDE B
Nunber 2459

DETECTI VE LI VI NGSTON continued and stated that

day

suspension is fairer than a 45-day suspension

comrent ed:

Those of us who have been around in |aw enforcenent
since the 1980s renenber ... the situation wth
al cohol vendors. W would try to get the people who
owned the liquor licenses to get their clerks to stop
selling alcohol to mnors. And back then, the
response we got was, "There's such a high turnover
with alcohol clerks that we don't have the tine to
train them" And it wasn't until a crisis occurred
that that situation was finally addressed. It took
the liquor store clerk here in Anchorage to sel
al cohol to a mnor. That mnor got drunk and got
behind the wheel of a car, and then went out and got
in an accident where people died. And the police
found that receipt in that car. And it was not unti
then that TAM (Techni ques of Alcohol Mnagenent) was
mandat ed i n Al aska.

| advocate that the State of Alaska inplenment a system

in which tobacco vendors - all tobacco venders, not
just the license owner but the clerks - nust also go
t hrough sone sort of training. And | know that it's

going to take a crisis before we finally take action
but, quite frankly, we are in a crisis right now
W've got nore and nore kids snoking, especially

Al askan Native ki ds. Twenty percent of the general
popul ation of kids snoke. ... W're getting whacked by
the federal government for $1.5 million. And if those

first two crises don't get our attention, there's a
third crises on the horizon that's loomng, and that's
t he suspension of nore and nore tobacco |icenses.

Back in 1997 it was the nom and-pop stores that were
selling tobacco to mnors. Today it is no |longer the
nom and- pop stores; we suspended their |icenses [and]
they' re behaving today. It's no longer the grocery

he thinks a 20-

He

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE -14- April 18, 2001



stores; they're behaving. Who's taking their place?
It's the gas stations.

We're running a backward system in Al aska: we're
waiting until the violation occurs. W need to run a
forward system we need to mandate that all clerks
[ and] al | tobacco |icense owners get training
beforehand. And | think that's going to be a big step
toward taking care of the problem

W need to get those conpanies involved in the
pr ocess. For exanple, [since] back in 1997 when the
Fred Meyer store was cited, they have been very, very
progressive in taking care of the situation. They
police thensel ves. They do their own tobacco
conpliance checks wth secret shoppers out of
Portland, Oregon, and when a clerk sells tobacco to
one of their secret shoppers, they get an arrest.
They either train, retrain, or term nate that
enpl oyee. When a clerk does not sell the tobacco to
the secret shopper, they would award that person

When | send ny kids into Fred Meyer here in Anchorage,

they don’t sell to us anynore. | would even support
mandating laws in Alaska to nmake it so that clerks and
tobacco license owners need to get that training

upfront, so it's no |longer a backward system
Number 2320

REPRESENTATI VE HAYES stated that it sounds as if Detective
Livingston is a "one-man gang" in Anchorage checking for people
who are selling [tobacco] to mnors. He asked who is funded in
ot her areas of the state to do these types of checks.

DETECTI VE LI VI NGSTON responded that there are nore police
officers in Anchorage involved in the program In general, he
said, it started out at the request of the Ofice of the
Attorney General; there was funding from the [federal] Food and
Drug Adm nistration and the State of Al aska. He remarked that
he would |ike to see nore involvenent fromthe State of Alaska's

enf orcenment di vi si on. He said he is not aware of one state
trooper or one VPSO (village public safety officer) who is
involved in the program In sone of the tiny villages, 100

percent of the stores have sold to m nors.

REPRESENTATI VE HAYES asked, if [the commttee] passes the bill
whet her there would be enough folks out in the field to actually

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE -15- April 18, 2001



make headway in regard to stopping mnors from buying
cigarettes.

DETECTI VE LIVINGSTON replied that there are enough people; they
just need to understand why it's such an inportant issue. He
said he doesn't think people know there is a possible $1.5
mllion "fine."

Nunber 2226

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG, in reference to Detective Livingston's
testinony regarding Title 11, stated that he is concerned about
how that is inplemented currently under AS 11.76.100(d). He

asked, if an enployee makes the sale, whether he or she could be
puni shed by a $300 fine.

DETECTI VE LI VI NGSTON r esponded that he was correct.

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG remarked that the bill reads that the
person making the sale also owns the business |icense and
endor senent . He asked Detective Livingston how he currently

handl es the distinction between the violation by a business and
the violation by an enpl oyee.

DETECTI VE LI VI NGSTON answered that currently, if the enpl oyee or
clerk sells tobacco to a mnor, he or she is cited for a sale of
tobacco to a mnor. He added that about 99.9 percent of the
past cases have involved a clerk and not the tobacco |icense
owner; therefore, he said he doesn’'t think the changes to Title
11 are necessary.

Nunber 2147

MR. LI NDSTROM stated that he thinks an alternative would be to
delete [the fines] from AS 11.76.100 and integrate theminto the
civil penalties under AS 43.70.075(d) [page 7, Section 7
continuing on to page 4].

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG asked whether there are any other
f eder al requirenents the [Ilegislature] needs to be in
conf ormance wth.

MR. LI NDSTROM responded that he would have to defer to the

sponsor. He noted that this provision was not a suggestion from
t he division.

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE -16- April 18, 2001



MR. MANLY remarked that Representative Harris wanted to make the

fines fairly stiff. He said there was sone discussion that cane
up when going through this. For exanple, when commerci al
fishing violations becone too high, they are no |onger just
fines but heavier crimnal offenses. He said he doesn't think

Representative Harris would have a problem if they were nobved
into AS 43.70; it would probably nake nore sense for themto be
t here anyway.

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG asked M. Lindstrom whether [DHSS] has
any administrative proceedings that assess fines under the APA
[ Adm ni strative Procedure Act].

MR. LI NDSTROM responded that the admnistration of these civil
fines is not wwthin his departnent; it is within the D vision of
Occupational Licensing [Departnent of Community & Economc

Devel opnent ] . He said he knows that [the D vision of
Qccupat i onal Licensing's and DHSS ] desire, should [the
commttee] nove the bill, is for some certainty that it is a

$1,000 fine or a $5,000 fine, to mnimze the potential of
endl ess admi nistrative hearings, appeals, and all the costs that
go with that.

Number 1982

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG asked Detective Livingston whether he
thi nks those levels of fines would be fair, and if there should
be civil fines mandat ed.

DETECTI VE LI VI NGSTON responded that he would urge a great dea

of caution, because when crimnal sanctions mngle with civil

sanctions, it can get extrenely conplicated. Above all, he
would ask if it is necessary. Right now the clerk is cited
under Title 11, and if he or she is convicted, then the tobacco
license [owner] is |looking at a suspension of the |license, which
really gets the license owner's attention. He stated that there
needs to be nore consistency; instead of checks every four
years, they need to be done nore regularly. The long-term
solution, in his opinion, is witing laws that mandate that all

tobacco licensees and tobacco clerks be trained before they can
sel |l tobacco.

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG asked Detective Livingston whether he

has ever cited the same clerk or the sane business nore than
once.

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE -17- April 18, 2001



DETECTI VE LI VI NGSTON answered that he has cited the sane clerk

nore than once. One happened to also be the tobacco |icense
owner; however, it was determined that the he could not legally
sell tobacco at all in his location. Typically, he said, it is

a different clerk.

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG suggested creating a msdeneanor for a
mul ti ple offender because of the $300 violation cap.

DETECTI VE LI VI NGSTON responded that he knows there have been
| aws that have been proposed in the past for a second [offense]
to be a m sdeneanor and for a third offense to be a felony. He
said in general [those cases] are going to be very rare.

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG suggested raising the violation cap to
$500.

Nunber 1811

DETECTIVE LIVINGSTON replied that typically store clerks who
actually get the $300 fine are not highly paid; therefore, the
fine does get their attention. He remarked that the enforcenent
just needs to be consistent.

CHAI R MJURKOWEKI referred to the nonconpliance survey results and
stated that it is troubling that comunities with |ess than nine
outlets have a 61 percent nonconpliance rate. These are the
towns where everyone knows everyone. She remarked that she is
making the logical junp that people don't care what the rule is
and will sell cigarettes to anybody, regardless of whether they
know t he person. She asked Detective Livingston for his opinion
on howto deal with the smaller conmunities.

DETECTI VE LI VI NGSTON responded that it was disturbing for him
too, when he went out to sone of the tiny places. He said he
thinks part of the reason [the percentage] 1is better in
Anchorage is because citations have been issued and the word has
been getting out, whereas the chance of sonmeone out in a renote
village actually getting a ticket seens to be pretty small. He
remar ked that one of the best ways to get the nunbers reduced in
Alaska is to work with the big gas stations.

Nunber 1611

DAN BRANCH, Assistant Attorney GCeneral, Commercial Section,
Cvil Dwvision (Juneau), Departnent of Law, testified via
tel econference. 1In regard to Section 1 of the bill, which would

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE - 18- April 18, 2001



amend AS 11.76.100(d), he stated that he is not prepared to
totally explore the constitutionality of the proposed changes.
He said it is true that a violation is generally a $300 fine;
however, he isn't sure that having a higher penalty for this one
particular statute would cause a conflict. The fact that the
fine for a person with two prior [convictions] who is also the
owner of the tobacco endorsenent is $5,000 creates concerns,
because generally if punishment is mandated for an offense in
the formof a fine, it is high enough to be considered crim nal
by the court system

CHAI R MURKOWBKI stated that as the bill is drafted, a citation
is witten up but the person receiving the citation is not
required to sign the notice. She asked M. Branch whether there
is any problem with adequate notice to the individual who
receives the citation. Essentially, she said, the citation is
issued to the person who sold [the tobacco] but the entity that
hol ds the endorsenent is the one that is ultimately punished if
the endorsenment is pulled. She asked whether there are noticing
pr obl ens.

MR. BRANCH responded that he doesn't believe so. He stated that
the citation provisions in Section 11 are designed to give the
folks at [DHSS] the authority to require the clerk to appear in
court. The notice that is provided through the citation formis
to the clerk or to the person who actually sold the tobacco.
The fact that they don't have to sign it is not significant,

because they will receive a copy of it. He added that it is
basically the sane approach as when police officers summobns
individuals to court for violations. The tobacco endorsenent
holder wll receive notice of intent to suspend the tobacco

endor senent .
Nunber 1286

REPRESENTATI VE RCOKEBERG referred to page 6, line 27, which
states, "AS 44.62 (Adm nistrative Procedure Act) does not apply
to a hearing under this section", and asked M. Branch whether
that is typical statutory construction - to exenpt the hearing
officers fromthe APA and allow the departnent to draft its own
regul ati on.

MR. BRANCH responded that it is not uncomon to have such an

appr oach. The APA provides the standards for admnistrative
review. This particular bill, he said, provides quite a bit of
structure. It sets out provisions for how the admnistrative
hearing will be conducted and for how the conm ssioner wll

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE -19- April 18, 2001



consi der adopting or rejecting the decision. There is then an
opportunity to appeal. The bill is designed to streanmine the
adm ni strative process, which makes the penalties mandatory as
opposed to discretionary. He added that he thinks it 1is
appropriate to have this particular bill provide that, instead
of having the APA structures apply. By law, any regulations
promul gated would have to be consistent with the statutes under
whi ch they are inplenented.

Nunber 1132

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG asked M. Branch, if [the commttee]
were to delete the $1,000 to $5,000 fines in the crimnal
section of Section 1, whether the provisions found under the
hearing procedures [subsection (p) on page 6] allowng for a
fine of up to $250 a day in a civil penalty, not to exceed
$5,000, would give a hearing officer the ability to assess a
fine of any amount up to $5, 000.

MR. BRANCH responded that that provision would give the hearing
officer the authority to inpose a fine for violating paragraph
(2) of AS 43.70.075, which requires that there be a sign posted
on the prem ses. He remarked that if the [commttee] wanted to
nove the fine from Section 1 into a civil context, the nore
appropriate way to do that would be to put it in subsection (d)
or AS 43.70.075, as M. Lindstrom suggested.

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG stated that M. Lindstrom al so indicated
that he'd prefer to see a stipulated nondiscretionary fine
| evel .

MR. BRANCH responded that he thinks that is reasonable, given
that the goal is to streamine the process. There needs to be a
streanm i ned process in order to punish violations of the fine.

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG asked, if the fines are nandated, why
there woul d be a hearing.

MR. BRANCH answered that if the person who is fined doesn't
think there should be a fine, he or she is entitled to a
heari ng. From the departnent's point of view, if the
endor senment hol der doesn’t ask for a hearing, then there won't
be one.

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG stated that it seens to himthat it's at
the discretion of the hearing officer to assess the fine. He

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE - 20- April 18, 2001



said, "It could be a distinction between Safeway and nom and pop
about what the anount of fine m ght be appropriate.”

Number 0881

MR. MANLY comrented that the fines [his office] has conme up with
are not particularly arbitrary; Representative Harris wants to
have sonme fairly hefty fines. He said he agrees that a $1,000
fine mght hit a nom and pop [store] a |ot harder than it would
a Safeway; however, if the endorsenents are separated out per
| ocation, Safeway could |ose the endorsenent for a store and not
be able to sell tobacco for 20 days.

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG stated that he agrees with Detective
Li vingston about renoving the penalties from Title 11 and
putting any civil penalty under AS 43. He suggested having
default mninmum penalties with ranges and letting the hearing
of ficer hear the testinony.

MR, LINDSTROM responded that that could be a possibility;
however, he is concerned that the $481,000 in new resources wl|
be spent a whole lot nore on hearing officers and attorneys than
on enforcenent.

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG stated that if he was facing a $5, 000
fine, he would be nore interested in Ilitigating it than
defaulting on it.

Nunber 0722

CHAIR  MJRKOWSEKI remar ked that if she understands what
Representative Rokeberg is saying, he is going to choose to

litigate, yet he is suggesting that these penalties be set. She
remarked that perhaps it needs to be nore difficult to appeal
these mandatory fines. She added that Representative Rokeberg

had made a point that there needs to be sone flexibility when a
nmom and- pop shop that has fouled up a couple of tinmes, since
when the gas station appears to be the big violator, the $2,000
fine i s neaningless.

DETECTI VE LI VI NGSTON stated, "On the other hand, | think that
the suspension of their endorsenent m ght have a bigger inpact
on themthan it would on a nom and pop."

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG remar ked t hat there's not hi ng

discretionary with the way the bill is drafted; there is the
suspension and the fine. It certainly doesn’'t provide any

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE -21- April 18, 2001



leeway in terns of neting out what presunmably would be a fair
and equi tabl e puni shment, he added.

Nunmber 0463

CHAIR MURKOWBKI referred to Section 4 and asked Ms. Bales from
the Departnent of Revenue whether the destruction of the
cigarettes or the return to the manufacturer is required by the
MBA [ Master Settlenent Agreenent].

JOHANNA BALES, Revenue Auditor, Tax D vision, Departnent of
Revenue, testified via teleconference that it is not required.
She explained that the Departnment of Revenue is charged wth
tracking product into Al aska from manufacturers who are not
obligated to the Master Settlenent Agreenent. The mgjority of
those manufacturers are |located out of the country. In 1999
only 3 of those 23 manufacturers could conply with the state |aw
under the Master Settlenent Agreenent. Because of the fact that
the manufacturers are out of the country, it causes a little bit
of a jurisdiction problemin trying to prohibit the sale of that
product . This section, she said, woul d  prohibit t he
distributors within the state to sell the product, until those
manuf acturers conme into conpliance with state statutes.

CHAI R MURKOWSKI asked whether the licensee is currently free to
sell the product.

M5. BALES answered yes. She said under the statutes that were
part of the Master Settlenent Agreenment, the Departnment of Law
has to sue those nonconplying manufacturers, and would have to
wninalawsuit two years in a row At that point, sale of the
product can be prohibited in the state for two years.

CHAI R MURKONSKI asked what happens to the licensee if, after the
31lst day, he or she hasn't destroyed the cigarettes or returned
themto the manufacturer

M5S. BALES responded that [the departnent] would confiscate the
cigarettes. O course, she said, [the licensee] would be out

what ever he or she paid for the cigarettes and paid in state
t axes.

CHAIR MJRKOWBKI asked whether there is no penalty if [the
| icensee] tried to sell those cigarettes.

M5. BALES responded that she was correct.

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE -22- April 18, 2001



Nunber 0127

CHAI R MURKOWBKI asked whether, if she opened up a little grocery
store and decided to sell tobacco products, she would have to
apply for an endorsenent through the D vision of QOccupational
Li censi ng.

JENNI FER  STRI CKLER, Adm ni strative Oficer, Di vi sion of
Cccupational Licensing, Departnent of Conmmunity & Economc
Devel opnent, testified via tel econference that she was correct.

CHAI R MURKOWSKI asked, when her endorsenent cones, whether she
woul d receive anything telling her what her obligations are as a
vendor of tobacco products.

M5. STRICKLER responded that if Chair Mrkowski makes an
application for her initial business |icense, she would specify
on the application that she wshes to obtain a tobacco

endorsenment as well. At the time [the division] issues the
| icense, the business license wll specify "authorized for
tobacco sale.” Following [issuance of] the license itself, the

division mails out a sign, currently required in statute, which
needs to be posted conspicuously at the place of sale.

TAPE 01-60, SIDE A

CHAI R MURKOWSKI surmised that if she were renewing her license,
she would only get the endorsenent and wouldn't get any
information with regard to her obligations.

MS. STRI CKLER responded that she was correct.

REPRESENTATI VE  ROKEBERG asked  Ms. Strickler whet her she
envi sions having an investigator to review conpliance, and what
the conpliance would relate to.

Number 0076

M5. STRI CKLER answered that currently [the division] has funding
from DHSS for investigator services. The investigator acts upon
notices of convictions that [the division] gets fromthe courts.

So far, there are three businesses on the [list. The
i nvestigator does the legal footwork to put the suspensions into
pl ace. In response to a further question, she said currently

[the division] has an investigator who is funded in part by DHSS
to do that.

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE -23- April 18, 2001



REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG asked Ms. Strickler whether nobst of the
hearing officers in the Dvision of GCccupational Licensing
foll ow APA procedure, or if they have separate procedures.

M5. STRI CKLER answered that to her know edge [the division's]
hearing officer follows the APA

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG asked whether those hearing officers
normally have a certain anmount of discretion in assessing any
civil penalties.

MS. STRI CKLER stated that she doesn't know

CHAIR MJRKOWSKI asked Ms. Strickler how long the tobacco
endor senent has been $25.

Ms. STRICKLER answered that it has been set at $25 since the
tobacco endorsenent program went into effect around 1990 or
1992.

REPRESENTATI VE HAYES asked why [the conmittee] is changing the
price from$25 to $100.

MS. STRI CKLER responded that it is her understanding that it is
an attenpt to attain nore revenues to support the enforcenent
efforts.

Nunber 0315

MR, MANLY remarked that the nmain idea was to generate nore
revenue and to make the endorsenent be a Ilittle nore
commensurate with the activity that it invol ves.

REPRESENTATI VE HAYES asked M. Manly whether he has talked to
ot her fol ks who woul d be affected by this.

MR. MANLY answer ed no.

MR. LI NDSTROM added that [DHSS] wants to make the enforcenent

program as self-supporting as it could be. He remarked that
many people get the tobacco endorsenment on their business
license and don't even sell tobacco, which lead [DHSS] to

believe that the $25 is trivial.

REPRESENTATI VE HAYES suggested that under M. Lindstronms |ogic,
if some of those folks aren't even selling tobacco and they

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE - 24- April 18, 2001



think $100 is too high, then [DHSS] would | ose noney. He asked
M. Mnly whether he has thought of wusing tobacco settlenent
noney as an avenue.

MR. MANLY responded that he thinks Representative Harris would
like to put nore tobacco settlenent noney into tobacco sales
enforcenment; however, there have been higher priorities in the
[ DHSS] budget.

CHAI R MURKOWBKI asked whether the sale of single cigarettes is
still all owed.

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG responded that it was outlawed two years
ago.

Number 0625

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG made a notion to adopt conceptua
Amendment 1, to delete Section 1, which |eaves the penalty at
$300.

REPRESENTATI VE MEYER obj ected for discussion purposes. He asked
what the rationale is for wanting to renove it.

DETECTI VE LI VI NGSTON responded that [Title 11] is not "broken."

CHAI R MJURKOWBKI added that Detective Livingston had suggested
that if it was going to remain, it should be in the civil
section rather than the crimnal section.

REPRESENTATI VE MEYER wi t hdrew hi s obj ecti on.

CHAI R MURKOWBKI announced that there being no further objection,
conceptual Anmendnent 1 was adopt ed.

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG remarked that [the goal was] "not to
exceed penalties for the endorsenent holders who have repeated
viol ations, but give the hearing officer some discretion to nete
that out.” On the other hand, he said, the departnent wants to
keep the [fiscal] note down by having nore stipulated anounts.
He said he thinks that can be acconplished by having a not-I|ess-
t han- an-anount, and for the range to be up to $5, 000.

CHAI R MURKOWBKI asked Representative Rokeberg whether he thinks,
with having this range be a minimm of $1,000 to a nmaxi num of
$5, 000, that a nmom and-pop shop would appeal it in order to stay
away fromthe $5,000 fine.

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE -25- April 18, 2001



REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG responded that currently, if someone has
been convicted nore than once in the past 24 nonths, it is a
mandat ed $5, 000 fi ne.

Nunmber 0843

MR. MANLY reiterated that the sponsor wanted to nmake the
penalties as stiff as the legislature would allow He said the
sponsor got pretty [upset] with the fact that since the [state]
is so out of conpliance, it is costing $1.5 mllion.

CHAI R MJURKOWBKI asked, if the language from Section 1 was put
into Secti on 7, whet her t hat woul d acconpl i sh what
Representative Harris is seeking.

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG asked whether the range could be cut.
He suggested having ranges of $500 to $1,000, $1,000 to $2, 000,
and $2,500 to $5,000; thus the hearing officer could have sone
di scretion. He asked M. Lindstrom whether he thought that
woul d generate nore hearings.

Number 0951

MR. LI NDSTROM r esponded that one of the principal goals of this
| egislation from [DHSS s] perspective is to mnimze the
possibility of the limted enforcenent dollars being "chewed up"
t hrough endl ess appeal s.

CHAIR MJURKOWSKI said she likes that [the fine] is a known
anmount .

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG asked whether the fines could be cut in
hal f and put in the civil section.

REPRESENTATI VE KOTT pointed out that wunder Section 11 of the
bill, DHSS is given citation authority if there is probable
cause to believe that a person has violated AS 11.76.100, [AS
11.76.]106, and [AS 11.76.]107. He added that AS 11.76.107 is
failure to supervise the vending machines, and established in

that is a $300 fine. He suggested [the sections should
conforny.
Number 1176

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG made a notion to adopt conceptua
Amendnment 2, to take the lines on page 1, line 13, through page

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE - 26- April 18, 2001



2, line 8, and insert them into the civil liability section,
Section 7 on page 3. He added that the $1,000 fine should be
cut to $500 if the person has not been previously convicted; the
$2,000 fine should be cut to $1,000; and the $2,500 fine should
be cut to $5,000 if [the person has been convicted] nore than
once in the past 24 nonths.

CHAI R MURKOABKI objected for the purposes of discussion. [If the
range in [paragraph] (4) is $2,500 to $5,000, she said, there
won't be any certainty. She added that she would be hesitant to
gi ve ranges.

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG renoved the ranges from conceptual
Amendnment 2. He remarked, "W're back to nom and pop versus big
[ corporation] again.”

CHAI R MURKOWBKI responded that the answer to that is, "You can
still go after the endorsenent.™

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG renmarked that the reason he likes the
discretion is because the hearing officer could take the
ci rcunstances i nto account.

CHAI R MURKOWBKI agreed, but said she thinks the point is to
avoid having to go to the hearing officer in the first place.

REPRESENTATI VE RCOKEBERG remarked that that was one reason why he
was | owering the fines.

Number 1327

CHAIR MJURKOWSKI said she would renpbve her objection if
conceptual Amendnment 2 is to take the |anguage in Section 1,
beginning on line 13, and reduce it from $1,000 to $500; from
$2,000 to $1,000; and from $5,000 to $2, 500.

REPRESENTATI VE KOTT obj ect ed. He stated, "If you're going to
tinker with that, you' ve got to tinker with [AS 11.76.107]."

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG renarked that he thinks the testinony
was that the endorsenment holder is responsible for the vending
machine; therefore, it 1is the endorsenent holder, not the
vending machine owner, who would be fined. He asked
Representative Kott why he objected.

REPRESENTATI VE KOTT stated, "If you've contracted with a vendor
you have the endorsenent [and] you' ve got an enployee that's

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE -27- April 18, 2001



supposed to be supervising or watching that vending nachine al
the tinme. If he doesn't, then the fine kicks in. If there is
probabl e cause, then [DHSS] issues a citation,”

CHAI R MJRKOWBKI asked whether that is the same thing as in
Section 1(d)(1), which is not being changed.

MR. MANLY remarked that he thinks Chair Mrkowski is right. The
$300 fine applies to the clerk who sells [the tobacco], not to
t he endorsenent hol der.

REPRESENTATI VE KOTT w t hdrew hi s objection.
Nunber 1517

CHAI R MJURKOWBKI announced that there being no further objection,
conceptual Anendnent 2 was adopt ed.

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG stated that he is still troubled by why
t he APA should not apply on page 6, lines 27 to 28.

MR. LI NDSTROM answered that he believes it is the preceding
section [above |line 27] that specifies how the hearing officer
may consider how a hearing is conducted for this particular
pur pose.

MR. BRANCH agreed with M. Lindstrom and stated that subsection
(m would set out a "series of burden of proofs” instructing the
hearing officer on what issues should be considered during the
heari ng. The intent, he said, is not to deny a respondent the
opportunity to have a fair hearing, but to recognize that
there's a different structure because of the provisions that can
be consi dered during the hearing.

Nunmber 1636

MR. LI NDSTROM poi nted out that the fiscal note submtted by DHSS
is basically all-inclusive. It includes the funds that wll be
RSAed (reinbursenent services agreenent) to the Departnent of
Law in its fiscal note and to the Departnent of Conmmunity &
Econom ¢ Developnent in its fiscal note. Every dollar that is
additional to what [the departnent] currently anticipates for
the hearing proceedings is a dollar that cones out of the
program elsewhere in the [DHSS] fiscal note. That includes
vendor education and contracts with | aw enforcenent [agencies].

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE - 28- April 18, 2001



REPRESENTATI VE KOTIT remarked that what is being determned is
probabl e cause that the person did not reasonably nonitor [the
machi ne] . He asked who is going to be doing these
i nvestigations and issuing the citations.

MR. SASSER answered that the mpjority of the |aw enforcenent
activity wll still be by sworn police officers. He said he is
anticipating that the sane groups of police officers that have
been used and trained over the years wll be invol ved.

REPRESENTATI VE KOTT stated that the mnority of those citations
woul d then be issued by the departnent. He asked who within the
department woul d be issuing those citations.

MR. SASSER responded that if the youth is successfully able to
buy out of a vending machine, which would represent either the
negligence or the state of mnd that the statute is discussing,
there would be no way to establish probable cause or failure to
nonitor. M. Sasser said he, as a retired |aw enforcenent
officer, would have the statutory authority to do that wthin
the Division of Public Health.

REPRESENTATI VE KOIT asked, if a machine is in a bar, the
sprinkler system goes off, the bartender wal ks in another room
and a kid under 19 conmes in and purchases [tobacco], whether
[the bartender] would fall within that category.

Nunber 1852

MR. SASSER responded:

In the world of Jlaw enforcenent, we neke those

decisions every day about ... what's reasonable
comunity policing. ... In this world of sales of
tobacco to youth [there are] plenty of opportunities
to cite vendors. A small|l percentage of the vendors

who sold tobacco to youth |ast year recei ved
citations; the rest received letters indicating that a
sale was mde on a certain date and ... the
description of the clerk who did that.

It's our intent to be fair in every respect and to
resol ve doubt in the vendor's favor when possible. 1In
a case where a youth buys from a vending nachine -
which is extrenely rare, by the way - it's not part of
the normal Synar survey checks. ... First of all, the
youth is buying an age-restricted product in an age-

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE -29- April 18, 2001



restricted environnent. So they are not even supposed
to be on the premises. They are supposed to be 21 to

be there and 19 to purchase the tobacco product. So
there are really two opportunities there. | could
cite or an ABC officer could cite for different
t hi ngs.

REPRESENTATI VE KOIT asked whether a person under 19 could be in
a bar with a parent.

MR. SASSER responded that there could be a circunstance in which
a child could have access to a vending machine in an age-
restricted environnent. He added that his hope [with the
Division of Public Health] having the authority is to work with
the VPSOCs in the rural comunities for both vendor education
i ssues and reduction of sale. R ght now, he said, no matter how
many jurisdictions he contracts with, it is very difficult to
get into sone of the comunities [in Western Al aska].

REPRESENTATI VE HAYES asked how many incidents a year have to
occur in order to | ose the federal npnies.

MR. SASSER answered that he doesn't believe there is a specific

nunber . He stated that it is interesting because it is not
known how many outlets there are in the state. Hopefully, as a
result of this bill, [they will be known], because each one wl|l
have an endorsenent. [Until now the department] has found out

who is selling by looking at the 1,800 or so endorsenents that
[the Division] of OCccupational Licensing has; subtracting those
that have no intention of ever selling tobacco; subtracting
those that are out of state and whose hone office is in
Nashville, for exanple, but with 30 outlets in Al aska; and
collecting data from all of the officers over the l|ast four
years who have wal ked from door to door and know who is selling.
That cones out to be about 400 business. O those, [the
departnment] wants fewer than 20 percent to sell [to m nors].

Nunber 2063
REPRESENTATI VE HAYES asked whether there can only be 20 percent
illegal sales from the 400 businesses to get the federal

f undi ng.

MR. SASSER responded that those are roughly the nunbers being
di scussed.

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE - 30- April 18, 2001



REPRESENTATI VE HAYES stated that if there are 70 comunities
that have no |aw enforcenent, where everybody knows everybody
and people are buying cigarettes, the nunmbers wll bunp up.
However, there won't be any noney for police.

MR. SASSER replied that one tool this bill provides is
statutory authority for [DHSS] to wite citations in those
villages where it traditionally does not have contract officers
avai l able, or which are outside [the officer's] jurisdiction and
the officer does not feel confortable witing citations. That
is one of the main reasons, he said, that statutory authority
for [the Division of Public Health] is so useful.

REPRESENTATI VE HAYES asked, if [DHSS] issues citations, who does
the foll ow up. He said there are places in Alaska w thout |aw
enforcenment, and he thinks that could present nore of a problem
in the long run.

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG poi nted out that he thinks one of the
problenms with enforcenent in the state, particularly in the
smal l er communities, is that everybody knows everybody else. He
said the case could be made that providing this authority is
positive, because the |local people could be reluctant to
actually enforce the | aw

Nunber 2213

REPRESENTATI VE MEYER nade a notion to adopt conceptual Anendnent
3, on page 4, line 1, to change the 20 days to 30 days.

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG o0bj ect ed. He stated that according to
Detective Livingston, it used to be 45 days, and that he could
live with 20 days.

CHAIR MJURKOWSKI asked M. Manly whether the current statute
doesn’t address any suspension if a person has not been
convicted previously, but only if the person has.

MR. MANLY answered in the affirmati ve.

CHAI R MURKOWBKI clarified that this would nean the first tinme a
person gets caught, [the endorsenent] is suspended.

MR. MANLY renmarked that it is also discretionary on the part of

the departnent; it may suspend for not nore than 45 days. This
woul d make it mandatory rather than discretionary.

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE -31- April 18, 2001



REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG asked M. Manly whet her, because of the
di scretion, there was a typical anmount of time neted out.

MR. Manly responded that he doesn't know.

MR. SASSER remarked that he has seen a nenorandum of agreenent
as low as 3 days and that 20 days is fairly comon.

REPRESENTATI VE MEYER stated that currently it obviously is not
wor ki ng, because businesses are still selling to mnors. The
only way to get a business's attention is to wthdraw the
| icense. He said he doesn't think "up to 20 days" is adequate.

Number 2430
REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG wi t hdrew hi s obj ecti on.

REPRESENTATI VE HAYES obj ected for the purpose of discussion. He
said his problem with the anpbunt of days is that it seens the
busi ness is being punished for an enpl oyee's m st ake.

TAPE 01-60, SIDE B

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG said the person has to be the
endorsenment holder for the fine but not necessarily for [the
suspensi on] .

Nunmber 2453

REPRESENTATI VE MEYER remarked that businesses are responsible
for their enployees, and the business manager needs to nmake sure
the enployees are adequately trained. He suggested it needs to
be stressed that this is a serious offense.

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG indicated he thinks the nobst slack

should be given "up front" regarding the enployee. He said
there is an inconsistency with enforcenent right now, and wth
the change there will be a nandatory $500 fine and a suspension

of the endor senent.

REPRESENTATI VE MEYER stated that if enployees are trained to
sinply just check identifications, they have nothing to worry
about . He said the nunbers he has read indicated that if a
person does not start [snoking] until after age 19, there is a
90 percent chance he or she never will start.

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE -32- April 18, 2001



REPRESENTATI VE CRAWFORD shared that when he takes his kids to
school, he sees 40 to 50 kids down the hill, and a Ilarge
majority are snoking cigarettes. He said he would like to cut
off as many ways for them to get cigarettes as possible. He
believes this bill is a good first step, he said, and that a
three-day suspension with a $300 fine is not a sufficient
deterrent.

Nunber 2274

REPRESENTATI VE HAYES said while he supports the bill, he still
feels [the committee] is being awfully harsh on busi nesses.

REPRESENTATI VE CRAWORD nentioned that he has listened to
previous testinmony that many tines [businesses] just receive a
letter. He remarked that he doesn't think [law enforcenent]
tries to fine [businesses] on the first offense.

CHAI R MURKOWSKI noted that the sentence on page 4, line 1, goes
on to say "if the person has not been previously convicted of
violating AS 11.76.100, Il.76.106, or 11.76.107". She clarified
that [AS 11.76.]100 is selling or giving tobacco to a mnor, [AS
11.76.]1106 is selling tobacco outside controlled access, and [AS
11.76.]1107 is failure to supervise a cigarette vendi ng nachine.
She asked whether a person who has never been previously
convicted woul d be subject to this.

MR. MANLY responded that she was correct.

CHAI R MURKOWSKI said her hesitancy with changing it to 30 days
is that right now there is no education. She offered her belief
that businesses don't even get anything from the D vision of
Qccupational Licensing. She said her attitude is, if a person
has been informed as to what the consequences are, he or she
shoul dn't have a "free shot."

REPRESENTATI VE HALCRO noted that he thinks the Division of
Qccupational Licensing does give sonething out.

CHAI R MURKOWEKI asked whether it is mninmal.
Nunber 1967
MR. LI NDSTROM renmarked that it truly is mninmal. He added t hat

part of [DHSS' s] plan with the additional resources is to do a
|l ot nore in the way of vendor educati on.

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE - 33- April 18, 2001



REPRESENTATI VE HALCRO asked what people receive currently when
they get their tobacco |icenses.

MR. LI NDSTROM answered that he understood from the testinony
from the Division of GQccupational Licensing that [business
owners] get several copies of the sign that cites the statute
and says, "You may not sell to mnors."

REPRESENTATI VE HALCRO stated that they are given notification of
the |l aw, then.

CHAI R MURKOABKI agreed, but stated:

| don’t have a set of these in ny hone to refer to and
find out what AS 11.76.105 is. | think that we need
to do a better job of telling people, "You will |ose
your right to sell a product for 20 days, first tine
around, or 45 days if you fail to pay attention.” I
think we need to be very clear in what the
consequences are."

Number 1955

A roll call vote was taken. Representative Meyer voted in favor
of adopting conceptual Amendnent 3. Representatives Kott,
Rokeberg, Crawford, Hayes, and Mirkowski voted against it.
[ Representative Halcro was absent for the vote.] Ther ef or e,

conceptual Anendnent 3 failed by a vote of 1-5.
Number 1953

REPRESENTATI VE RCOKEBERG made a notion to adopt conceptua
Amendnent 4, that wupon issuance of an endorsenent, copies and
expl anations of the penalties will be provided.

REPRESENTATI VE KOTT objected for the purposes of offering a
friendly anendnment to reduce the $100 amount [in Section 6] to
$50. He said he thinks $100 is too nuch. According to M.
Li ndstrom nany people aren't even using their endorsenents.

REPRESENTATI VE HAYES objected to Representative Kott's [friendly
anmendnent] .

CHAI R MURKOABKI conmented that she thinks [the two anmendnents]
shoul d be separate.

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE - 34- April 18, 2001



REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG stated that he is not accepting
Representative Kott's friendly anmendnent.

Nunber 1831

CHAIR MURKOABKI also objected to the anmendnent to conceptual
Amendnent 4. She asked whether this is $100 every ot her year.

MR. MANLY answered that she was correct.

REPRESENTATI VE KOIT remarked that that's his point. He said it
is the sane as a business |license. He withdrew his anendnent to
conceptual Anendnent 4.

Nunber 1790

CHAI R MJURKOWBKI announced that there being no further objection,
conceptual Anmendnent 4 was adopt ed.

REPRESENTATI VE KOTT made a notion to adopt conceptual Anendnent
5, to reduce the anount [of the endorsenent] from $100 to $50.

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG obj ect ed.
CHAlI R MURKOWSKI asked how nuch a business |icense costs.

REPRESENTATI VE KOTT responded that he thinks it is $50 every two
years.

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG suggested changing the endorsenent to
$75.

REPRESENTATI VE KOTT responded that the nunber of endorsenents

has already been increased. He said he thinks if it is $75
people will start "falling off" who would otherw se continue
payi ng.

REPRESENTATI VE MEYER stated that the reason people are getting
[ endorsenments] now is because [the endorsenents] are so cheap.
He said he thinks the people who will pay $100 will be the ones
who really intend to sell tobacco and tobacco products.
However, he does think the price should be different from that
for a regular business |icense, he added, because those people
are selling a very dangerous, controlled, addictive substance.

Nunber 1712

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE - 35- April 18, 2001



MR. LI NDSTROM remarked that he believes a business license is
$25. This is qualitatively different from the business |icense
fee. One of the problens is that the Division of QOccupational
Licensing has not regarded itself as being in the regulatory
busi ness, and yet it is now being asked to do that by virtue of

the tobacco endorsenent. The departnent thinks it will be fine
if those who don't currently sell tobacco no |onger get the
t obacco endorsenent, he said. It will make it easier to figure

out who does sell tobacco. He added that this is a substanti al
program it is only appropriate, given how frequently retailers
are selling tobacco to mnors, that they pay for a significant
portion of the cost of regul ating those folks.

CHAI R MJRKOWBKI asked whether [the departnent] is estimating
t hat about 400 Al aska busi nesses sell tobacco.

MR. LI NDSTROM responded that the 400 figure was roughly the
sanpl e size under the Synar protocol. The nunber of people on

the registry at the Division of GCccupational Licensing is about
1, 800.

CHAI R MURKOWBKI asked, if this bill passes and every WIIlians
gas station has to have an endorsenent for each outlet, how many
nore endorsenents there woul d be.

MR. LI NDSTROM answered that he doesn’t have the nunbers. The
change in revenues is $100, 000, but [the Division of
Qccupational Licensing] is suspicious of how many additiona
[ endor senents] would be picked up because everyone has to have
an endor senent. [ The division is] equally unsure of how nany
people are going to "drop off" now that [the endorsements cost]
$100.

CHAIR MURKOWSKI surmised that if there are approxinmately 1,800
endorsenments already, [the Division of GOccupational Licensing]
is assuming that the endorsenents purchased are at 1,000
| ocati ons.

MR. LI NDSTROM renmarked that he doesn't know the detail ed
cal cul ations that were nmade.

Number 1531
REPRESENTATI VE HAYES said he agrees with the amendnment because

he fears the nom and-pop [stores will ask] what they are getting
for this big increase.

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE - 36- April 18, 2001



CHAI R MURKOWBKI asked M. Lindstrom whether, essentially, [the
bill] is trying to cover the increased costs of enforcenent.

MR. LI NDSTROM responded that it [covers] about a quarter of it.

A roll call vote was taken. Represent ati ves Hayes, Kott, and
Rokeberg voted in favor of adopting conceptual Anmendnent 5.
Representatives Crawford, Meyer, and Mirkowski voted against it.
[ Representative Halcro was absent for the vote.] Ther ef or e,
conceptual Anendnent 5 failed by a vote of 3-3.

Nunber 1421

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG nmde a notion to nove HB 228, as
anmended, out of commttee wth individual recommendations and
the attached fiscal notes. There being no objection, CSHB
228(L&C) nmoved from the House Labor and Commerce Standing
Commi ttee.

ADJ OQURNVENT
There being no further business before the comrttee, the House

Labor and Commerce Standing Conmittee neeting was adjourned at
6:05 p.m

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE -37- April 18, 2001



